
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Resources Department 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Members of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee are summoned to a meeting, 
which will be held in Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 17 October 2017 at 
7.30 pm. 
 
 
Yinka Owa 
Director – Law and Governance 
 
 

Enquiries to : Ola Adeoye 

Tel : 020 7527 3044 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 9 October 2017 

 
 
Membership Substitute Members 
 
Councillor Rowena Champion (Chair) 
Councillor Mouna Hamitouche  MBE (Vice-
Chair) 
Councillor Raphael Andrews 
Councillor Gary Doolan 
Councillor Caroline Russell 
Councillor Troy Gallagher 
Councillor Gary Heather 
Councillor Clare Jeapes 
Councillor Alice Perry 
 

Councillor Dave Poyser 
Councillor James Court 
Councillor Satnam Gill OBE 
Councillor Nurullah Turan 
Councillor Theresa Debono 
Councillor Alex Diner 
Councillor Angela Picknell 
 

 
Quorum is 4 members of the Sub-Committee 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  

 
Formal Matters 
 

Pages 
 

1.  Apologies for Absence 
 

 
 

2.  Declarations of Substitute Members 
 

 
 

3.  Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 

 

4.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 8 
 

5.  Public Questions 
 

 

 For members of the public to ask questions relating to any subject on the 
meeting agenda under Procedure Rule 70.5. Alternatively, the Chair may opt to 
accept questions from the public during the discussion on each agenda item. 

 

6.  Chair's Report 
 

 
 

B.  

 
Items for Decision/Discussion 
 

Pages 
 



 
 
 

1.  ANNUAL REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

9 - 46 
 

2.  Q1 PERFORMANCE REPORT - EMPLOYMENT & SKILLS 
 

47 - 52 
 

3.  RECYCLING IN HACKNEY - PRESENTATION 
 

53 - 80 
 

4.  NWLA/ISLINGTON RECYCLING - A PRESENTATION 
 

81 - 104 
 

5.  WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018 
 

105 - 
106 
 

C.  

 
Urgent non-exempt items (if any) 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgent by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

D.  

 
Exclusion of press and public 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential information within 
the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, 
if so, whether to exclude the press and public during discussion thereof. 

 

E.  

 
Confidential/exempt items 
 

Pages 
 

F.  

 
Urgent exempt items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 

The next meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee will be on 14 
November 2017



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee held at 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on  11 September 2017 at 7.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Champion (Chair), Hamitouche (Vice-Chair), Russell, 
Gallagher, Heather and Jeapes 

 
 

Councillor Rowena Champion in the Chair 
 

 

138 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A1) 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Andrews and Doolan. 
 
 

139 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A2) 
 
There were no declarations of substitute members.  
 
 

140 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A3) 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
 

141 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A4) 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 11July 2017 be confirmed as an accurate record of 
proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 
 

142 PUBLIC QUESTIONS (Item A5) 
 
None 
 
 

143 CHAIR'S REPORT (Item A6) 
 
The Chair stated that the order of business would be B2, B3, B1 and B4. 
 
The Chair informed the meeting that the site visit to the Bunhill Power Station has now been 
arranged for 6 October 2017 and that a request for a site visit later in the evening would be 
considered so as to accommodate councillors unable to attend due to work commitments. 
 
 

144 2017/18 QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT-ENVIRONMENT (Item B1) 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

2 
 

Kevin O’Leary, Corporate Director, Environment and Regeneration presented the Quarter 1 
Performance Report which sets out the corporate performance indicator suite for 2017-18, 
together with a progress update for indicators relating to Environment over the first quarter 
of 2017-18. 
 
The following points were made: 
 

 Members were advised that as a result of a technical breakdown with the Contender 
software, data on waste collection was not available for the committee to consider. 
However the Corporate Director, Environment and Regeneration indicated that the 
information would be circulated to Members after the technical issues had been 
resolved. 
 

 In response to a question regarding the health impacts and the group of people that 
the Council is encouraging into leisure activities, Members were advised by the 
Corporate Director, Environment and Regeneration that a detailed breakdown of the 
data would be circulated. 
 

 Members were informed that Islington was presently the second lowest amongst the 
London boroughs in terms of residual (non-recycled) waste per household. Its figure 
of 381kg was below the NLWA target of 413kg.   
 

 In response to a question on whether advice or information from Council was 
available in relation to alleviating residents’ energy costs, the Executive Member for 
Economic Development advised that Council was aware of residents experiences 
with the 6 national energy providers, however it was difficult to convince residents to 
switch suppliers. Members were reminded that support exists for residents through 
Council initiatives such as the Warm Home Discount, Debt relief and Energy Doctor 
and that residents should be referred to the Council’s Energy Advice Team for 
advice. 

 
 

145 HOUSEHOLD RECYCLING IN ISLINGTON - PRESENTATION (Item B2) 
 
Matthew Homer, Waste and Strategy Manager, was present and made a presentation to the 
Committee. (Copy interleaved). 
 
During consideration of the presentation the following points were made- 
 

 The Council’s Annual Waste Minimisation and Recycling Action Plan was agreed by 
Executive on 20 September 2016 with the aim of providing quality services that 
meets the needs of residents and ultimately increases recycling and reduces the 
amount of waste sent for disposal via landfill or incineration. 
 

 Islington Council has a compulsory recycling policy which applies to all homes and 
includes all recycling streams where a service is offered such as mixed dry 
recycling, food and garden waste.  
 

 Committee was advised that the Council’s Waste Minimisation and Recycling Action 
Plan 2016-17 seeks to achieve a recycling rate of 32.5% for waste from households 
and to support the NLWA recycling target of 50% by 2020  
 

 In response to a question about enforcement, the Waste Strategy Manager advised 
that although enforcement was more practical with street properties than in Estate 

Page 2



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

3 
 

blocks with communal bins, even here recent legislative changes has made it more 
difficult to enforce. 
 

 North London Waste Authority remains the regional waste disposal authority for 
Islington and six other north London boroughs. In 2016/17 Islington Council’s 
recycling saved the equivalent of £650,000 in disposal costs as a result of menu 
pricing. 
 

 NLWA Joint Waste Strategy 2004-2020 was last updated in 2009 and would  be 
updated in the context of the NLHPP and the Mayor’s new Environment Strategy 
 

 Members were advised of the Mayor of London’s Draft Environment Strategy which 
aims to make London a ‘zero waste city’, with no biodegradable or recycling waste 
being sent to landfill by 2025.  
 

 In response to a question on achieving the Mayor’s strategy of increasing the 
recycling rate up to 50% by 2020 and 60% by 2030, the meeting was informed that 
the Mayor’s focus is to be directed on food waste and single use packaging. 
 

 Members were advised that Islington presently offers a collection of mixed dry 
recycling to all its residents, a minimum weekly recycling and refuse collections, food 
and garden waste collections for street properties, communal recycling bins for 
estates and nightly collections for flats above shops. The meeting was advised of 
other services such as textile recycling sites, reuse and recycling centre, bulky 
waste and reuse collections etc. 
 

 Items collected for recycling end up at the Bywaters facility in Bow from which it is 
sold off to repressors either in the United Kingdom, Europe and the Far East and 
made into new products.  With regards to residual waste this ends up at  London 
Waste in Edmonton where it is incinerated and converted for energy use or 
composting. 
 

 With regards to the rate of recycling, the Waste and Strategy Manager 
acknowledged that organic recycling was quite low and this was due to issues 
around food and garden waste, however dry recycling was high compared to 
neighbouring boroughs. The meeting was advised that considering homes in 
Islington don’t have gardens, the composting rate was quite good. 
 

 Members were advised that as part of the waste prevention plan, the Council in 
conjunction with NLWA, embarks on outreach activities to promote food waste 
reduction by engaging in face to face conversations with residents. The NLWA also 
participates in events such as Annual Waste Prevention Exchange and School 
Waste Education programme. 
 

 In response to a question about public awareness Members were informed of 
NLWA’s three year ‘Save Our Stuff’ campaign which is directed at 18-34 year olds, 
encouraging them to make recycling the right thing to do, with the use of digital 
advertising and social media.   
 

 The Waste and Strategy Manager advised that although Islington Council had not 
set aside any budget for communications, it continues to ‘piggy back’ on the ongoing 
NLWA communications campaign and promotes its recycling services through 
various channels, including the Council’s website.  
 

Page 3



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

4 
 

 In terms of education and engagement with residents, the meeting was advised that 
door knocking campaign had always been effective when employed previously 
however resources were limited. Door knocking is   mostly externally funded and 
mainly directed at residents living in estate blocks and flats. 
 

 The meeting was advised that the need to improve recycling sites, contamination 
and fly tipping in estates and public sites was challenging. The Waste and Strategy 
Manager indicated that although work had been done with regards to tackling 
contamination and fly tipping there was still more work to be done. 
 

 With regards to food waste collection, Members were advised that street properties 
are provided with individual bins and some Estates have communal bins. 
Contamination still remains significantly high and difficult to address. Participation 
among residents in estates was quite low. 
 

 Members were informed that with the introduction of technology on the new fleet of 
vehicles, issues of overflowing bins especially in estates could be potentially be 
more effectively reported and resolved with vehicles being despatched to the estates 
to empty the bins when required. Also as the vehicles measure the weight of the 
contents of the bins, officers could explore the potential to target estates with low 
recycling rates. 
 

 Members were advised that local authorities are trying to achieve the same aim, 
however each has to deal with difficult circumstances and provide a number of 
different solutions. The meeting was told that some have resorted to fortnightly 
collections for residual waste and weekly for recycling and in some instances charge 
for collection of garden waste. 
 

 In response to a question on how to increase Islington’s recycling rate from  31% to 
the Mayoral target of 50%, the Officer advised that addressing issues around the 
housing estates and also around the private rented sector would raise the present 
rate of recycling. 
 

 Members were informed that as refuse vehicles returns back to the depot with their 
load, it may not be allowed to proceed to Bywaters if it is contaminated. Members 
were advised that in instances where contamination persists officers would visit the 
premises and engage with the residents on the benefit of recycling and its impact. 
 

 In response to a suggestion on whether the savings realised from waste collection 
could be diverted towards campaigns and resident engagement, the Waste and 
Strategy Manager advised disposal costs are charged corporately via a levy from 
NLWA, that this would have to be a corporate decision and also on whether a 
business cases could be proposed to justify such decision.  
 

 On concerns about improving recycling in the domestic rented sector, the meeting 
was informed that Resources London had produced a report called Guide to Waste 
to Waste Management in the Private Rented Sector with a number of 
recommendations on developing a relationship between local authorities, landlords 
and private tenants. Members were advised that officers are currently working 
through the recommendations with the aim of producing an action plan which will be 
brought to the Committee in due course. 
 

 The Head of Street Environmental Services acknowledged the good work being 
undertaken when compared to its neighbouring authorities however for any further 

Page 4



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

5 
 

improvement so as to achieve the Mayor of London’s target, the Council would need 
to carry out door knocking campaigns especially in its housing estates and the 
private rented sector.  
 

 The Chair informed the Committee that as part of the review, Officers on the 
operational side have been invited to the next meeting in October as it was 
important for Members to understand and share the daily operations of the team and 
the various challenges it experiences.    
 

 In response to a question on enforcement especially in light of Islington’s 
compulsory recycling policy, Members were advised that the Council tends to focus 
more on educational activities and engagement with the residents and that only in 
exceptional cases such as fly tipping would officers serve a S46 notice and it will be 
a last resort. 
 

 In response to a suggestion on the possibility of incorporating clauses in relation to 
recycling in tenancy agreements for private rented landlords, the Waste and 
Strategy Manager advised that the Council has no control over private landlords and 
although there is a licence scheme in place for landlords, it is voluntary, with the 
exception of the HMO Licensing scheme.  
 

 A suggestion on whether caretakers could be utilised more effectively as recycling 
champions considering their knowledge of their estates and their residents, and also 
their capability to relate to the BME and residents with disabilities was noted.  

 
 

146 IMPROVING RECYCLING PERFORMANCE IN ISLINGTON - PRESENTATION (Item B3) 
 
Cathy Cook, Support Manager Resource London, was present and made a presentation to 
the Committee.  
 
During consideration of the presentation the following points were made- 
 

 The Local Authority Support Manager from Resource London (RL) advised 
Committee that RL is a jointly funded partnership programme created by the London 
Waste and Recycling Board(LWARB) and WRAP which ends in March 2020 and it 
supports London waste authorities, helping them to achieve recycling targets set by 
the Mayor of London and the national government.  Cathy Cook informed the 
committee that Resource London helps to deliver these targets by undertaking 
service reviews for local authorities, introducing behavioural changes among 
residents and promoting innovation and development.  
 

 Cathy Cook highlighted the 4 objectives of Resource London as restricting residual 
waste, improving the yield and quality of dry recycling, increasing and improving the 
capture of unavoidable food waste and minimising the amount of waste produced. 
 

 With regards to innovation, the Support Manager explained that as the aim of local 
authorities is to increase their rate of recycling RL would work in conjunction with 
councils’ to focus on certain aspects such as changing their residual collection 
regime from weekly to fortnightly; focus on flats by using single transparent bags; 
reduce the size of the residual bins and containerisation. 
 

 The Support Manager informed Members of recent changes introduced by 
Camden’s Waste Service in April 2017 with the result that the recycling rate had 

Page 5



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

6 
 

increased by 11% compared to the previous year.  
 

 Members were advised that Islington and other London boroughs experience similar 
challenges with regards to increasing their rate of recycling. Islington has a number 
of unique characteristics such as having  80% of its housing stock being flats, its 
diverse and cultural mix population, cuts to central government budgets, all resulting 
in different approaches to how the Council has to address the challenges of 
increasing rate of recycling. 
 

 Members were advised that with regards to the private rented sector, a guidance 
booklet had been developed, which will help increase the awareness of recycling 
however there are concerns where landlords still would not provide facilities for 
recycling in their premises. 
 

 In response to a question, the Support Manager acknowledged that RL operates on 
a strategic planning level with waste authorities and have no working relationship 
with voluntary organisations such as Tenant and Resident Associations. 
 

 Members agreed that the involvement of TRA should be encouraged as TRA’s 
providing solutions on issues such as the siting and design of recycling sites would 
be regarded as ideas of resident and a feeling of ownership. 
 

 On the issue of increasing community engagement suggestions such as having a 
league table of recycling rates of housing estates or on a ward by ward basis on the 
Council website and introducing some financial or community incentives was noted.  
 

 On the issue of overflowing bins especially on estates, the Executive Member for 
Economic Development acknowledged that some of the council buildings were 
structurally old and have no recycling facilities, however housing services were in 
the process of undertaking a structural survey of its bins. 
 

 In response to a question on whether Council would be considering best  practices 
from neighbouring authorities, the Chair informed Committee that Officers from 
Camden and Hackney have been invited to the Committee, an opportunity for 
Members to consider their experiences. Members were reminded that authorities 
vary in terms of types of properties and the population demographics. 
 

  The Support Manager advised that with regards to the future, Islington or any 
authority intending to meet the Mayor’s target would need to employ some radical 
changes to their services, such as restricting residual waste or by introducing 
fortnightly collections.  

 
 

147 DRAFT SCRUTINY INITIATION DOCUMENT (Item B4) 
 
The Chair invited comments from Members on the draft scrutiny initiation document. 
 
A suggestion to include Tenants, Residents and a Community Development Team Manager 
as witnesses was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the Scrutiny Initiation Document be agreed subject to the inclusion of the above 
witnesses.  
 

Page 6



Environment and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee -  11 September 2017 
 

7 
 

 

148 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 (Item B5) 
 
That the work programme be updated prior to the next meeting. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.45 pm 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Report of the 

Executive Member for Economic Development 

Councillor Asima Shaikh

Environment & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee

17 October 2017

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 B
1



Outline

• Islington Council’s approach to economic development – Inclusive Economic 

Growth

• Emerging Economic Development Strategy - Vision and Objectives

• Restructuring to meet our objectives: creation of the Economic Development 

Team

• Progress towards meeting our objectives 

• Future challenges and opportunities

P
age 10



Context

• Islington is one of the most economically successful and dynamic parts of

London, but many residents and small businesses are being left behind.

• The Council wants to encourage and support strong growth in Islington’s

economy.

• However, economic growth should not be at the expense of those who are

currently unable to benefit from its success. It should not result in the

displacement of local people and businesses or the disruption of local

communities.

• The Council believes that economic growth should be genuinely sustainable and

provide social benefits for all local people and businesses as well as financial

prosperity.

• Building on the work of the Fairness Commission and Employment

Commission, the council is committed to the principle of delivering ‘inclusive

growth’ or ‘good growth’ through its emerging economic development

strategy.

P
age 11



Inclusive Growth – OECD Definition

“Inclusive growth is economic growth that creates opportunity for all

segments of the population and distributes the dividends of increased

prosperity, both in monetary and non-monetary terms, fairly across

society.

In many countries, people have not seen their incomes rise for years. The 

gap between rich and poor has widened, with those at the top capturing 

the ‘lion’s share’ of growth. Rising inequality in earnings and in wealth 

is a major concern, but money is just one aspect of people’s well-

being. In just about every area, whether it be education, life expectancy, or 

employment prospects, success is determined by socio-economic status, 

wealth and assets, sex, age or the places where people live.”

P
age 12



The Council’s draft Vision for Inclusive 

Growth

“Islington as an economy that works for everybody,

where sustainable, inclusive growth is harnessed to

reduce unemployment, poverty, and inequality of

opportunity.”

The council’s emerging Economic Development

Strategy will set out how the council’s vision for

inclusive economic growth will be achieved.

P
age 13



Organisational Restructure

• Town Centre Management Team restructured to form a new Economic

Development Team

• Team’s work programme increasingly aligned to achieving the Council’s vision of

inclusive economic growth

• This includes:

• leading on the development and delivery of an overarching Economic

Development Strategy for Islington

• developing and delivering the council’s affordable workspace strategy

– providing support for micro, small and medium-sized businesses

– working more closely with business clusters and sectors across the borough

P
age 14



Draft Economic Development Strategy 

Key Objectives

Six draft objectives are proposed in the emerging Economic Development Strategy

1. Ensure that Islington residents share in economic growth particularly 

through employment opportunities.

2. Improve the learning and skills of Islington residents to enable them to 

take full advantage of available employment opportunities.

3. Protect existing employment space, intensify employment uses in growth 

areas, and increase the provision of employment space including 

affordable workspace.

4. Maximise opportunities for the growth of Micro and Small Sized 

Businesses.

5. Support local town centres and enable an evening economy that works 

for everyone.

6. To make a positive difference to the local economy through the role of the 

Council as an economic agent.

P
age 15



Objective One

Ensure that Islington residents share in 

economic growth particularly through 

employment opportunities.

P
age 16



Out of work benefits

Total numbers on out of work benefits 

are reducing, but remain high

20,890 (12.2%) of Islington working age 

residents (aged16-64) are claiming Out 

of Work benefits

17,370 (10.1%) are on key out of work 

benefits

Key out-of-work benefits include: JSA, IB/ESA, lone parent Income Support and ‘Others on income-related benefits’.  Source: DWP, Nov 16.

16.5%

12.2%
13.2%

9.4%

14.2%

11.1%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%
% of residents on main out of work benefits

Islington
%

London
%

Great
Britain%

6,750

2,710

12,760
11,960

2,980
2,290

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000
Numbers on key out of work benefits

JSA

ESA / IB

Lone
parents

Almost 70% of those residents 

claiming key out of work benefits are 

on sickness benefits

Numbers on ESA have fallen by 800 

against a target reduction of 450

However 7% of working age residents 

in Islington are still on sickness 

benefits, compared to 4.8% across 

London and 6% nationally

Numbers on JSA have fallen from 

3,200 (Nov 15) to 2,710 (Nov 16)

Key out of work benefits

P
age 17



Employment support: 

Key Strands of Council Activity

• Employment support: direct delivery of employment support to key groups of 

residents and work with partners across the borough to agree a shared 

understanding of good practise 

• Employer engagement: working with local employers, and key job brokerage 

agencies to identify good jobs and apprenticeships and employability support to 

schools and residents

• Supporting the next generation: working with young people in schools/ post 16 to 

give them industry insights, employability training and a better understanding of 

apprenticeship pathways

P
age 18



Creating change for the people who need it:

Direct Employment Support

• In response to the recommendations of the Islington Employment Commission, the 

Council has invested in high quality direct delivery of employment support, targeting 

those residents most in need of bespoke services.

• The iWork Employment support team is co-located with the Customer Service centre and 

the Income Maximisation team, and in close proximity to the Islington CAB at 222  Upper 

Street.

• It offers a coaching and mentoring service to residents who are either, long term 

unemployed , have  multiple and complex needs, or are in receipt of in work benefits. 

Building Local Partnerships

• The Council has taken its place as lead stakeholder in the local offer of employment 

support.

• The Employment Practitioner Network: 4+ meetings per year, 60+ local organisations, 

Islington Employment Practitioner Charter regarding quality support. 

• The Wellbeing and Work partnership: Council DWP and Health partners, Focus on 

employment as a health outcome.

• The Employment Clusters: established in Finsbury Park , Archway and EC1, 

commencing in Caledonian Ward. 

P
age 19



Employment Support: 

Paid job outcomes 

1,142 residents supported into 

work (April 2016 to March 2017)

Our Employment support offer is 

now more coordinated building on 

the recommendations of the 

Employment Commission.

Residents are referred to the most 

suitable service, thus avoiding 

duplication.

P
age 20



Residents supported into work:

targets and outcomes for 2016-17

Measure
Target 

16-17

Actual 

16-17
15/16 Comments

Support Islington 

residents facing 

additional barriers into 

employment

1,100 1,142 1,153

Year on year improvements in supporting residents into 

work. iWork accounts for about one third of the overall 

results but other resident facing services are embedding 

employment support into their role in line with the 

Employment Commission recommendations. The 

remaining results are gathered through monitoring of 

commissioned services, returns relating to school 

leavers, and reporting from council contractors and

suppliers.

Of which:

• Parents (children 

aged 0-15)

385 267 385

• Disabled or with 

long term health 

conditions 

200 203 192

The increase in the number of disabled people into work 

is largely due to client level data now being available 

from a commissioned council project ‘Mental Health 

Working’. The project provides specialist employment 

support to people with mental health conditions living in 

Islington. 

• Young people 

(aged 18-25) 
300 341 342

The iWork services continue to work with  employers to 

broker more apprenticeship opportunities. 

200 council 

apprenticeships over 4 

years (2014-2018)

50 42 44

Numbers taking up council apprenticeships were below 

target, with 42 placements in the year, but this was 

partly because of the new alignment with the school 

year. Numbers should peak in the autumn and spring.

Number of Islington 

residents supported 

into an Apprenticeship

100 122 104

Numbers of Islington residents supported into 

apprenticeships was 122 against a target of 100.

P
age 21



Employers creating change: 

Employer Engagement
Create a more 

flexible and diverse 

workforce

Develop your staff by 

getting involved 

locally

Recruit and retain 

staff by paying a 

living wage

Inspire the next 

generation

Develop the 

workforce of 

the future 

Recruit better 

locally through 

flexible recruitment 

and job carving

CSR and 

volunteering 

opportunities 

including coaching 

and mentoring of 

those looking for work 

London Living 

Wage

Provide mentoring and 

work inspiration for 

young people

Take on an 

apprentice or 

develop entry 

level roles for 

young people

165 employers 

involved 

31 disabled 

residents employed 

in adjusted roles

25 Get Set For Work 

placements in 

Islington council –

unemployed 

residents mentored 

through work 

placements.

6 businesses 

engaged with ACL 

learners 

117 Islington 

Employers have 

accredited as 

London Living wage 

employer

110 Employers engaged 

with Islington Schools 

through youth 

employment team

9 business mentoring 

activities through the 

BIG alliance impacting 

on 7 schools , three 6th 

form colleges, 153 

mentors and 228 

students 

20 Saturday 

Jobs 

Traineeship

programme run 

for repairs 

team 

122 residents 

supported into 

apprenticeships 

P
age 22



A Sectoral Approach 

• Focused on growth sectors identified by 

the Islington Employment Commission 

– Construction sector 

– Hospitality  

– Retail

– Health and Social Care 

– Finance and Legal 

– Facilities 

– IT and Digital

LSE brokered jobs by key growth sectors

• Relaunch of Islington Business Board 

with sectoral representation 

• Increased  Council involvement with 

local business CSR forums including 

Urban Partners, Knowledge Quarter 

and Health and Social Care 

The chart shows the number 

brokered in the key growth 

sectors as identified by the 

Islington Employment 

Commission.

The Learning Skills and 

Employment Service 

broker jobs/opportunities 

across a range of sectors.

P
age 23



Creating change for the next generation

• Apprenticeships: supported the brokerage and recruitment of 122 Islington residents 

into apprenticeships 

• Employability support: traineeships- a successful programme was run in partnership 

with the repairs team resulting in 5 young people being recruited into roles in the council 

and with external employers

• Saturday Jobs: 20 Saturday jobs were brokered for school aged young people

• Unemployed Young Adults: 3 Aspire events in partnership with Arsenal in the 

Community, HASS community engagement team, and Progress Team. 54 employers 

engaged with 179 young people , and 34 young people entered into employment as a 

result 

• Youth Engagement pilot: using young people to promote employment support and 

other opportunities to their peers, resulting in 15 young people aged 16-24 into paid 

work and 9 into learning

P
age 24



Creating a strong link between schools 

and businesses

Work in Schools 

• Over 120 employers engaged with over 6735 pupil places filled over the 

academic year (Sept 16-July 17), delivering employability days, taster sessions, 

careers fairs, visits and talks.  

• Key sectors engaged including construction, health & social care, hospitality, 

tech, professional & financial services. 

• Apprenticeship promotion across all ten mainstream secondary schools, the 

PRU and Alternative Provision. 

• Successfully supported a bid for ESF Careers Cluster to be delivered in the 

borough in partnership with City and Islington College . 18 local employers and 

higher education institutions committed to working with 9 local schools and the 

FE college. 

• Activities include curriculum enrichment, employability skills, inspirational talks 

and teacher CPD around the labour market and apprenticeships.

P
age 25



Objective Two

Improve the learning and skills of Islington 

residents to enable them to take full 

advantage of available employment 

opportunities.

P
age 26



Skills

Adult and Community Learning 

• Skills from Entry Level to Level 2 delivered by the Council’s Adult & Community 

Learning service, engaging those furthest from the labour market including those with 

long-term health conditions and complex support needs 

• Focus is on building skills for employment to get people into work – links to City & 

Islington College for ongoing progression

• External funding received from Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) = £1.1 million

Other Skills Activity 

• Islington Libraries continued to expand their offer in terms of Digital Inclusion, informal 

learning, homework clubs and study support.

• Strategic role in influencing wider provision – in Islington and London

• Central London Forward officer group developing a pan borough programme to meet 

skills gaps in the construction industry 

• Joint work with Health and Social Care Partners on new pathways into the Health 

Sector, promoting apprenticeships, work experience and tasters 

P
age 27



Adult Skills

Outcomes for 2016-17 academic year include:

• 2,023 residents enrolled onto ACL courses

• Over 500 courses and employment support packages delivered in more than 50 

community venues

• The 2016-2017 retention and pass rates for qualifications are high and above national 

benchmark but the final data will not be available until end of September 2016 (due to 

outstanding exam results)

• We are currently running a progression survey on 2016-2017 learners to identify who 

progressed into employment, training or education.  The survey report will be available 

by the end of September 2017

• “I know how to prepare myself for my job interview, how to answer the questions, how 

to sell myself to the company and I feel more confident about an interview.” – resident 

feedback

P
age 28



Libraries and Heritage

• A Reading Road Map was launched in every local primary school

• Summer Reading Challenge completed by 975 young readers (+10%)

• Reading Ahead Challenge completed by 129 readers (+300%)

• 120,671 residents accessed free computer use, IT short courses and 

121 support

• Over 1 million visits to Islington Libraries ,an increase of 5%

• Arts Council award of 100k to heritage led initiative with residents to 

combat social isolation 

P
age 29



Objective Three

Protect existing employment space, 

intensify employment uses in growth areas 

and increase the provision of employment 

space including affordable workspace.

P
age 30



Local Plan
• Encouraging growth through planning (Local Plan)

• Protect existing commercial uses: 

– Offices protected across borough, particularly in Central Activities Zone (CAZ) and 

other designated areas

– Strong protection of industrial use in Vale Royal/Brewery Road area

– Retail uses - particularly shops - protected in Town Centres (Angel / Nag’s Head 

(Major Town Centres) and Archway / Finsbury Park (District Town Centres)

• Promote new commercial uses

– Promote new office floorspace in the CAZ and other designated areas

– Secure proportion of new space in certain areas as affordable workspace

– Encourage intensification of industrial uses in Vale Royal/Brewery Road area

– New retail floorspace directed to Town Centres and Local Shopping Areas

– Specific sites allocated for new commercial uses, particularly offices

P
age 31



Affordable workspace

• Micro and small businesses make up 90% of Islington’s firms, providing

employment and a productive, diverse and vibrant local economy

• Many are being priced out of the local market, with a significant impact on the

economy, i.e. only being affordable for large corporations

• Affordable workspace can provide a mechanism to strengthen emerging growth

sectors and advance the council’s skills agenda. Enhanced skills provision is

fundamental to boosting residents’ eligibility to contribute to the local economy

• Affordable workspace secured on site through the Local Plan since 2013; as

part of new development, with offsite contributions only in instances where

onsite isn’t viable

• Developing a strategy for alternative models of managing affordable workspace

– but all focussed around delivering social value

• Good Growth Fund bid EoI submitted to deliver four new affordable workspaces

in Finsbury Park,

P
age 32



Affordable workspace – current position

Stage of development m2 Terms

Affordable workspace in use 400 1 year peppercorn, then 

incremental increase for 5 years

Heads of terms signed 1,000 In perpetuity

349 20 years at 50% market

300 15 years peppercorn

1,262 10 years peppercorn

Heads of terms under negotiation 668 20 years peppercorn

Awaiting planning permission 1,445 10 year peppercorn

Off site contributions £

Secured 285,000

Pending 488,000

In negotiation 250,000

P
age 33



Objective Four 

Maximise opportunities for the growth of 

Micro and Small Sized Businesses.

P
age 34



Micro & Small Businesses

• Developing Council’s work in supporting micro and small businesses:

– Securing affordable workspace for micro and small businesses 

– Delivering a programme of business support workshops (e.g. support with 

business rates, licensing, trading standards) working with other teams across the 

Council

– Continued support for and working with Town Centre businesses

– Developing Islington markets, including through a markets strategy and running 

campaigns (e.g. Love Your Market; Market Trader of the Year)

• Emerging sectoral approach to support key sectors in specific parts of the 

borough:

– Tech City (Old Street) 

– Bioscience and medtech (Kings Cross to City Road)

– Design, craftspeople and makers (Clerkenwell)

– Workshops (Vale Royal/Brewery Road)

– Fashion and garment trade (Fonthill Road/Finsbury Park)

P
age 35



Business Rates Reform

• Lobbied Central Government and the DCLG for changes to the 

business rates system through a campaign, including:

– Media campaign

– 15,000 signed petition

– Close working with the Chamber of Commerce and Angel Bid

• Intensive Council support during revaluation process: advice and 

workshops to local businesses on the business rate regime and 

associated changes

• Organised meetings with the Valuation Office Agency and local traders 

on the business rates revaluation process

• Assisted traders to achieve business rates reductions in Wells Terrace, 

Finsbury Park

P
age 36



Objective Five

Support local town centres and enable an 

evening economy that works for everyone.

P
age 37



Town Centres – overview

• Continued support to our town centres and businesses

• Four Town Centres in Islington: 

– Angel

– Archway

– Finsbury Park 

– Nag’s Head 

• Economic Development Officers provide support to town centres by:

– bringing together businesses to identify their needs 

– improving the town centres by working closely with traders associations 

– by supporting town centre management groups

P
age 38



Town Centres – achievements last year

• Angel: 

– Support for businesses at Camden Passage during Thames Water flooding 

– Support for the re - election of the Angel BID

• Archway: 

– Launched Archway Loyalty Card (approx. 2,000 active users)

– Completion of conservation-led shop front programme

• Finsbury Park: 

– Delivery of shop fronts programme

– Generated support for and set up Town Centre Management Group

• Nag’s Head: 

– Successful delivery of events

P
age 39



Town Centres – achievements

• Further achievements:

– Promoted the town centres as destinations for shopping, leisure and employment 

through individual websites and social media

– Contributed to environmental and street scene enhancements including the 

Archway gyratory removal, Archway’s Zero Emission Network and Cleaner, 

Greener, Safer Campaigns

– Developed a Visual Merchandising Workbook for businesses

– Fundraised for and commissioned Christmas lights and held festive events

– Licensing work to support music venues and the night time economy

P
age 40



Town Centres – going forward
Angel 

– Continued support for policing

– Pursuing improvements to Chapel Market

Archway

– Two-year programme of events on the new public space

– Support the transfer of Archway Market to the new public space

Finsbury Park 

– Increasing affordable workspace provision, including through the Good Growth 

Fund

– Actively supporting Fashion Garment Retail and Tech Sector in Fonthill Road

– Establishing new traders associations (including for Seven Sisters Road)

– Supporting interested traders on Fonthill Road with Sunday trading

– Improvements to public realm including the bridges

P
age 41



Town Centres – going forward

• Nag’s Head: 

– Support the improvement of the Nag’s Head market

– Improve Seven Sisters Road

• General:

– Bespoke business workshops and training in each town centre

– Business support information guides provided to all town centre businesses

– Production of Economic Development calender for businesses (including 

workshops, town centre events, FSB and Chamber of Commerce events)

P
age 42



Objective Six 

To make a positive difference to the local 

economy through the role of the Council as 

an economic agent 

P
age 43



Council  leading by example

• Islington has achieved the highest number of Living Wage Employers in 

London

• Islington is the London Council’s highest direct recruiter of apprentices 

to its own workforce

• New Social Value  officer role  and  new corporate indicators agreed for 

supply chain employment

P
age 44



Future Challenges and Opportunities 

Employment and Skills Devolution

• The new Work and Health programme will  collocate with iWork ;- council will have greater 

control over shaping and evaluation of this programme 

• ACL in London is likely to be significantly reshaped. The Council needs to identify and 

campaign for its preferred model of delivery

• In Work Poverty is a growing issue which needs to be addressed as part of the local delivery

Affordable Workspace 

• Bid to Mayor of London’s “Good Growth Fund” to expand affordable workspace within the 

borough.

• Planning Policy review during Autumn 2017 as part of the review of the Local Plan.  

• Council developing a new model of affordable workspace which promotes local employability 

Business rates

• The Council will continue to lobby the Government for a fairer business rate regime and to 

mitigate the impact on local businesses.

P
age 45



Questions and Comments

P
age 46



 

 

1 

 

Chief Executive’s Department 
Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD 

Report of: Executive Member for Economic Development 

 

Meeting of  Date Agenda Item Ward(s) 

Environment and 
Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee 

17 October 2017  All 

 

Delete as 
appropriate 

Exempt Non-exempt 

 
 
 
 
 

Report: Quarter 1 Performance Report – Employment & Skills 

1. Synopsis 

1.1 Each year the council agrees a set of performance indicators and targets which, 
collectively, help to monitor progress in delivering our corporate priorities and working 
towards the goal of making Islington a fairer place to live and work.  

1.2 Progress is reported on a quarterly basis through the council’s scrutiny function to 
challenge performance where necessary and to ensure accountability to residents. 

1.3 This report sets out a progress update for those indicators related to Employment & 
Skills for the first quarter of 2017-18 (1 April to 30 June 2017). 

 

2. Recommendations  

2.1 To note the progress at the end of Quarter 1 against performance indicators for 

Employment & Skills which fall within the remit of the Environment and Regeneration 

Scrutiny Committee. 

2.2 To note the introduction of new performance indicators:  E6 will monitor council 

contractors and suppliers’ contribution to generating employment for residents and 

E7 will monitor the progress of council led programmes to support residents’ learning 

and skills development. 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item B2



 

 

2 

 
 

3. Quarter 1 Update on Employment & Skills  

 

Objective 

PI 

No

. 

Indicator 

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 

Q
1

 A
c
tu

a
l 
 

A
p

r 
- 

J
u

n
 

Q
1

 T
a
rg

e
t 

T
a
rg

e
t 

 

2
0
1
7
-1

8
 

O
n

/O
ff

 

ta
rg

e
t 

S
a

m
e

 

P
e

ri
o

d
 l
a

s
t 

y
e
a
r 

 

B
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 

la
s
t 

y
e
a

r 

 

Support 

Islington 

residents 

into 

employment 

E1 

a) Total number 

of people 

supported into 

paid work 

through council 

activity 

with sub-targets 

for: 

Q 200 273 1250 Off 163 Yes 

iWork is the Council’s borough wide employment service. It 

accounts for about one third of the overall results. The remaining 

two thirds are gathered through monitoring of commissioned 

services, returns relating to school leavers, and reporting from 

council contractors and suppliers. The overall profile of quarter 

one is similar to that in previous years, there is a trend of 

increased  results (along with supporting data ) from autumn 

onwards. 

b) Islington 

parents of 

children aged 0-

18 

Q 57 77 385 Off 62 No 

The figure for parents remains below target, Work is underway to 

improve data capture regarding parental status.  Previous 

reporting did not include the raised participation age and the 

support offered to families with children aged 16-18. This has 

now been amended and will be reflected in future reports. 

Further initiatives will be planned with Childrens’ Services to 

target parents of older children. 

c) Young people 

aged 18-25 
Q 53 65 325 Off 50 Yes 

The figures for young people supported are usually lower in the 

summer term, with a spike between September and December 

as school leavers settle into their next progression.  

 

d) Disabled 

people / those 

with long term 

health conditions  

Q 33 40 200 Off 22 yes 

Performance is better than the same period last year. As 
explained above, an increase in results is expected from Quarter 
2 onwards. 

 

E2 

Percentage of 

residents 

supported into 

paid work through 

council activity, 

who remain in 

employment for at 

least 26 weeks 

Q 

Results 

report 

from Q2 

Results 

reported 

from Q2 

70% N/A 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

Increase 

proportion 

of disabled 

people in 

employme

E3 

Percentage gap 

between 

employment rate 

for residents with 

long term health 

conditions and 

A N/A N/A 13.5% N/A N/A  N/A 

 

P
age 48



 

 

3 

nt  overall Islington 

employment rate  

E4 

Number of 

Islington working 

age residents 

claiming 

Employment 

Support 

Allowance or 

Incapacity Benefit  

A N/A N/A 

 

 

11,46

0 

Nov 

16 

N/A 

12,620 

Nov 15 

 

Yes 

 

Promote 

and 

facilitate 

take up of 

apprentice

-ships 

E5 

a) Number of 

people placed 

into council 

apprenticeship

s 

Q 

 

 

 

4 10 50 Off 3 Yes 

The council has aligned recruitment to its apprenticeship 

programme with the academic year and college applications. 

Results will increase in subsequent quarters. 

b) Number of 

people placed 

into external 

apprenticeship

s 

Q 

 

 

 

22 15 75 On 5 Yes 

 

c)Percentage 

of council 

apprentices 

who move on 

to further 

employment or 

training within 

3 months of 

completing 

their 

apprenticeship 

Q 

 

 

60%  

Results 

reported 

from Q2 

70%  

N/A 

New 

measure 

N/A  

New 

measure 

This is a new measure introduced to monitor pastoral care and 
progression activities. 

Promote 

social value 

through our 

commissionin

g and 

contracts. 

E6 

a) Number of 

Islington 

residents 

supported into 

jobs with council 

contracted 

suppliers 

 

Q 

 

 

 

 

12 7 30 N/A 
New 

measure 
N/A 

 

 

 

These new performance indicators have been introduced to 
monitor the contribution of council contractors and suppliers in 
generating employment for residents. 

  

b) Gaining 

apprenticeships 

with council 

contracted 

suppliers. 

Q 2 2 10 N/A 
New 

measure 
N/A 

P
age 49



 

 

4 

 

 

 

Support 

residents to 

develop their 

learning and 

skills 

E7 

Number of 

learners doing 

an accredited 

course  

 

 

T 

 

 

Results 

reported 

termly  

Results 

reported 

termly 

1,200 N/A 
New 

measure 
N/A 

This new indicator has been introduced to monitor the progress 
of council led programmes to support residents’ learning and 
skills development. 

  

Percentage of 

those learners 

who achieve an 

accreditation 

T 

Results 

reported 

termly  

Results 

reported 

termly 

90% N/A 
New 

measure 
N/A 

 

P
age 50



 

 

5 

 

Report author:  
Name: Nicky Freeling 
Job Title: Business Engagement and Employment Support Manager 
Tel: 020 7527 6771 
E-mail: Nicky.freeling@islington.gov.uk  
 
 
Final Report Clearance 

 
Signed   

 
…………………………………………………… 

  
 
……………. 

   Date 

Executive Member for Economic Development 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51

mailto:Nicky.freeling@islington.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Recycling in Hackney 
Islington Scrutiny Review

17 October

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 B
3



Outline

1. Waste & Recycling Services

2. Historic Performance

3. Green Sack Introduction

4. Data Gathering: Participation, waste composition and restriction modelling

5. Special Projects: 

– Estates Recycling Programme

– Jewish food waste trial

– Food waste campaign

– Green champions

– Recycling incentives

6. Summary

P
age 54



1. Recycling Services
Street Level Services

Doorstep

Estates Services

Communal

Commingled Dry

Food

Garden

Food Commingled Dry

P
age 55

http://www.hackney.gov.uk/recycling-brown-bin.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/recycling-brown-bin.htm


1. Collection Frequency

Figure 7: Waste and recycling services available to low rise properties

P
age 56



1. Household Service Split

Service Type Recycling
Food 

Waste

Garden 

Waste

Residual 

Waste

Low Rise 49,428 43,718 39,743 53,319

High Rise 51,445 47,744 TBC 47,554

Flats Above Shops 4,023 0 0 4,023

Hhds with Service 104,896 91,462 39,743 104,896
Table 1: Number of household per housing type and service

P
age 57



P
age 58



2. Performance

EC
T 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t

C
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

C
o

m
m

in
gl

ed
 

In
-H

o
u

se

P
re

se
n

t 
D

ay

Recycling rate performance between 2001 and 2017

1.2
2.6

6.9

12.2

16.2

19.7

22.7 22.7
24.3 24.9 24.1 24.3

25.4 25.3 24.8
27.3

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0
2

0
01

/0
2

2
0

02
/0

3

2
0

03
/0

4

20
0

4
/0

5

2
0

05
/0

6

2
0

06
/0

7

2
0

07
/0

8

2
0

08
/0

9

2
0

09
/1

0

2
0

10
/1

1

2
0

11
/1

2

2
0

12
/1

3

2
0

13
/1

4

20
1

4
/1

5

2
0

15
/1

6

2
0

16
/1

7

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 w

as
te

 

P
age 59



3. Green Sack Introduction
• Weekly collection to all low rise properties, 49k households.

• Service changes from Green Box service to Green Sack in March 

2013.

• Decision based on:
– Trial tonnages: 26% increase in recycling tonnage.

– 14,000 properties unsuitable for green box.

– Larger capacity from 50 litres in the box to 60 litre in the sack.

– Recycling tonnage with box declined by 11% from 2011/12 to 2012/13.

– Recycling tonnages with sack increased by 3%, overall borough rate by 1% 

– Allowed to move service in-house and provide savings (£0.5m).

– Faster collections, reduce congestion.

– Residents preferred sack to box, participation up by 10%.

P
age 60



4. Data Gathering (Participation Rate)

62%

94%

84% average

Participation rate, ranging 
from as low as 18% to nearly 

50%

31% average

Participation rate 
ranging from 62% to 

94% 18%

50%

Commingled Food Waste

P
age 61



Green Sack participation

Mixed low and high participation across the borough.

Highest in Stoke Newington collection area.

P
age 62



Blue Bin participation

Low participation in Cazenove and Haggerston

Highest in Stoke NewingtonP
age 63



Waste Arisings Overview 

Collection rounds in north of the borough 

generate 50% more than average
2-4

kg/hhld/wk

12-15
kg/hhld/wk 8-12

kg/hhld/wk

P
age 64



4. Data Gathering (Composition Analysis)

• 2 seasonal waste composition analysis with 300 households.

• Key findings: 

• Food tonnage largest component by weight in the waste stream.

• Recyclable material weight has decreased since 2008, less glass and paper 

available to collect. Plastic has increased, but a lighter material.

• Deprived estate properties = Very low recycling rate.

• Contamination is not an issue in dry and food streams on street level.

• North of the borough produce very high levels of waste, and recycle the least. 

P
age 65



14

4. Analysis in Hornsey HWRC

P
age 66



4. Data Gathering (Restriction Modelling)

 Recycling rate flat-lined for 8 years at 24/25%.

 Waste Restriction – a future option for consideration.

 Eunomia Consulting assisted us in developing 5 possible waste 

collection modelling scenarios.

 3 key elements for each scenario: 

 Recycling rate

 Operational resource impact

 Carbon impact 

P
age 67



4. Data Gathering (Restriction Modelling)
Baseline

1 (BAU 

Enforced)

2 

(W 140)

3 

(F 240)

4 

(F 3xSacks)

5 

(F 140)

Weekly Sacks or 

Wheeled Bin 

Residual

Weekly Sacks or 

Wheeled Bin with 

Restriction

Weekly 140 L 

Residual

Fortnightly 240 L 

Residual

Fortnightly 3-Sack 

Residual (150-

180 L equivalent)

Fortnightly 140 L 

Residual

Baseline
1 

(BAU Enforced)

2 

(W 140)

3 

(F 240)

4 

(F 3xSacks)

5 

(F 140)

Weekly Co-mingled Dry Recycling

Weekly Separate Food Waste

Fortnightly Garden Waste

25%                   25%                    26%                 27%               28%                    29%

Recycling Rate by  2020

P
age 68



4. Data Gathering (Restriction Modelling)

 3 x waste sacks every forthnight with weekly food and recycling 

provides savings and an increase in the borough recycling rate by 3%.

 Further operational, enforcement and communications costings are 

required.

 Limitations in benchmarking exercise. 

 More authorities needed to gain robust modelling data before 

recommending restriction.

P
age 69



5. Special Projects – Estates Programme

 Estates or high rise form over 50% of properties in the borough.

 Lowest recycling rate, 15% compared to street level 40%.

 Housing properties even lower recycling rate, 8%.

 Corporate programme set up in 2014/15 to improve low performance 

levels on estates.

 An Estates Recycling Programme developed into three phases.

 Phase 1 and 3: Service and communications interventions.

 Phase 2: Capitals work programme, closing chutes and building bin stores.

P
age 70



P
age 71



April 2015

Work Progress

September 2016

Donne House

P
age 72



5. Special Projects – Estates Programme

• Phase 2: 3 estates with up to 1,000 properties

• A £0.5 million budget to build nearly 35 new bin stores and close 
hundreds of chute hopers.

• Unblocking chutes costs the council £60k a year.  

• First estate trial results: 37% more recycling collected, 11% less waste.

• A lengthy planning permission process and minor resident opposition.

• Two more estates trial tonnages expected by Q4 2017/18.

• However, the council will need to build up to 600 new bin stores in the 
next decade.

P
age 73



5. Special – Jewish Food Waste Trial

• Up to 15,000 Orthodox Jewish in the north of the borough.

• Previous doorknocking didn’t work ; Now, Jewish residents doorknocking 
on behalf of council.

• Low participation in food waste recycling 15% compared to 35% across 
borough.

• Trial to 500 households. A beskope service as they produce largest 
amount of food waste in the borough. 

• Larger food waste receptacle.

• Trial undergoing now, 40% contact rate received already when previous 
doorknocking have failed.

• If successful, to expand to all Jewish community.

P
age 74



5. Special – Jewish Food Waste Trial

P
age 75



5. Special – Food Waste Campaign

 Borough wide outdoor advertising campaign 2014/15.

 Doorknocking targeting high dry & low food recyclers 14,000 households 

(linked to participation data).

 30% increase in tonnages as a result of campaign.

 National Recycling Awards Winners 2015.

P
age 76



5. Special Projects (Green Champions)

• Borough wide campaign to recruit Green Champion in 2016.

• Monthly meetings with up to 10 active champions, and up to 150 
e-mail subscribers.

• Each volunteer given a GC Toolkit: T-Shirt, reporting booklet,  
service information and badges.

• Promoted services to neighbours and recorded issues for recycling 
team to action.

• Held an annual Be-Recreative event

• Lessons learnt: 
• A dedicated officer needed to run scheme

• It ended after champions lost interest; moved to other green issues

P
age 77



5. Special Projects (Incentives)

• DGLC funded £638k to provide rewards for recycling in Hackney

• A 3 year programme, started in October 2016. 

• Doorknocking Nov 16- March 17: 150,000 doors knocked, 35% 
contact rate and 28,000 accounts sign up

• Points based scheme: Local discounts and offers, £40 & £100 
vouchers, and donations to charities

• Full 1st year analysis to take place y November 2017

P
age 78



6. Summary

• Comprehensive service provision in place borough wide;

• Static (and potentially declining) recycling rates and increasing 
waste disposal costs;

• Communications campaign vital for service participation.

• Further modelling of restriction of waste required in future;

• Work on estates continues but scope for improvement is limited;

P
age 79



Questions and Discussion

Thank you

P
age 80



North London Waste Authority 

Recycling and Waste Prevention presentation 

to 

LB Islington Environment and Regeneration 

Scrutiny Committee 

17 October 2017

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 B
4



What we are going to cover

Presentation by Barbara Herridge, External Relations Manager, 

covering:

- Local strategic targets

- Recycling rates

- Barriers to recycling 

- Communications activity

Presentation by Dimitra Rappou, Waste Prevention Manager, 

covering:

- Waste prevention work, including outreach on both prevention and 

recycling

P
age 82



North London Joint Waste 

Strategy

• The North London Joint Waste Strategy (NLJWS)

– Is an eight authority strategy 

– Agreed by seven boroughs and NLWA

– Provides strategic framework for municipal waste management 

in north London for the period 2004 - 2020 

– Contains targets for reducing, reusing and recovering a greater 

proportion of the municipal waste generated in the North London 

Waste Authority area

– Sets targets for reducing the waste sent for disposal to landfill. 

P
age 83



North London Joint Waste 

Strategy (NLJWS)
The NLJWS complies with the waste hierarchy – recycling 

comes above disposal and recovery 

The Waste Hierarchy

P
age 84



North London Joint Waste 

Strategy
• Manage waste in line with the waste hierarchy

• Sets target for area wide recycling of 50% by 2020 

– Current performance for NLWA area 32% (LB Islington – 30.6%) 

– Performance ranges from 25% to 37% across the seven 

boroughs

– Challenges include population transience, high percentage of 

flats (which make household specific communications difficult) 

and low proportion of garden waste

• Progress reports annually at nlwa.gov.uk/governance-

and-accountability/annual-strategy-monitoring-reports

Source of figures – 2015-16 Annual Monitoring Report and 

LBI/Defra 

P
age 85



Sharing best practice

• North London authorities – seven boroughs and NLWA -

share information at an officer group which meets to 

discuss best practice and new initiatives (50% group)

• 50% group:

– Specified some research into barriers to food waste recycling

– Led the work on standardising recycling guidance

• NLWA Members Recycling Working Group considers 

strategic issues and focuses on increasing recycling and 

reducing waste in the area

• NLWA and borough waste managers identify barriers to 

recycling and consider possible solutions

P
age 86



NLWA activities to increase 

recycling

• Monitoring progress against targets and sharing best 

practice (previous slides)

• Research – e.g. research into motivations and behaviours 

work concluded boroughs best placed to provide 

instructional advice – informs other activity 

• North London communications campaigns

• Standardisation of advice to residents across the area

• Tackling contamination – NLWA contracts with materials 

recovery facility providers so sees the contamination first 

hand

• Outreach work – face-to-face communication across the 

NLWA area

P
age 87



Pan-north London 

communications campaign
• Recycling communications behavioural change campaign –

‘Save Our Stuff’ - three year campaign, targeted at young north 

Londoners (18 – 34) 

• Target audience chosen to maximise impact following research

• Campaign approach possible because of whole area activity:
– In the home campaign - Sky TV, digital and online 

– 2016-17 advert shown to target audience 6,781,076 times across two ‘bursts’ of 

advertising

• Outcomes of year 1
– Watched all the way through 1,646,632 times

– 36% of the target audience recalled seeing the advert after burst one.

– 59% said the advert had encouraged them to think more about recycling after burst 

one

• Year 2 increases click through to recycling information

P
age 88



Messages about recycling aren’t cutting  through with 18 – 34 year olds 
because they often  don’t adhere to their personal values.
It feels like an agenda being projected in  from outside their world"

The proposition is not relevant and tangible,  so it’s not motivating.

A key task for any advertising campaign is to grab the 

attention of the target audience 

A key task for any advertising campaign is to grab the 

attention of the target audience 

P
age 89



Save Our Stuff

A warning from the Netherlands

P
age 90



26,964 people reached

298 total engagements

280 link clicks to the 

hub

1% engagement rate

7,295 people reached

306 total engagements

4% engagement rate

9,206 people reached

150 total engagements

137 link clicks to the 

hub

1% engagement rate

Save Our Stuff – social media –
top performing content 

*Statistics are for each individual post

P
age 91



Measuring the impact of the campaign

Have you recently seen any television or 

online advertising for recycling?

q Yes, It has encouraged me to 

think about recycling more in 

the future

q Yes, but I’m unlikely to recycle 

more in the future than I 

currently do

q No

Research Source : nielsen

Non-exposed 

digital

(sample 233)

11.7%

24.8% 

Uplift

14.6%

Exposed 

digital

(sample 

328)

19.7% 

Uplift

14%

70.9% 

Uplift

1x exposure

(sample 193)
3x exposures

(sample 68)

P
age 92



Standardisation of advice across 

the area

Process followed working 
with borough officers:

• Reviewed useful advice 
issued by WRAP 
(national organisation) 
about what can and 
cannot be recycled

• Reviewed borough 
literature and websites

• Agreed standard 
wording for NLWA area

Picture shows a page of a leaflet which provides advice on what can and 

cannot be recycled using standardised advice for north London

P
age 93



Tackling contamination

As a disposal authority, identified top contaminants across 

north London

To reduce contamination, NLWA role:

• Research – e.g. have reviewed what other authorities are 

doing about contamination

• Provide disposal cost impact of contamination

• Provide information on contamination at MRFs for boroughs 

to follow up with residents

• Communications on a pan-north London basis e.g. billboard 

exhortation not to contaminate with nappies

• Provide communication tools e.g. sticker for use by boroughs

P
age 94



moving on to Waste Prevention and outreach�

P
age 95



16

• Implementation plan for delivering 
aims within the North London Joint 
Waste Strategy.

• Co-ordinated waste prevention 
activity since 2007.

• Prepared biennially and revised 
annually.

• Prepared in consultation with officers 
and Members.

• Sets out a series of specific actions.

• Delivered in partnership.

Plan available at 
nlwa.gov.uk/about/authority-strategies

Waste Prevention Plan

P
age 96



Measures
• Priority material waste 

streams
– Food waste

– Furniture/ Bulky waste

– Textiles

• Measures
– Awareness raising

– Educational

– Organisational

– Voluntary

– Economic

• Focus on 
– action-oriented activities

– informational and 
promotional initiatives

P
age 97



Food waste prevention
• Food waste prevention stalls

– 180 events

– 13,077 residents engaged

– 946 students engaged

– 433 office workers

• Workshops and presentations
– 32 community groups

– 373 residents trained

• 25 waste prevention displays

• Pumpkin Rescue Festival 

• New Leaf project

• Waste Less, Lunch Free events

• European Week for Waste 
Reduction

P
age 98



Furniture reuse

• London Upcycling 

Show

• Give and Take days

P
age 99



Textile reuse

• Swish and Style

• Sew Spooky

• Reference guides

P
age 100



Recycling

• Recycling information stalls
– 59 events (33 on mixed dry recycling, 26 promoting food waste 

recycling) 

– 2,760 north London residents engaged (782 mixed dry and 
1,978 food waste recycling)

• Recycling workshops and presentations

• Recycling game

P
age 101



Education 

• Intensive education project
– 14 schools

– 7 sessions per school

– 4,240 pupils 

– 175 parents; and

– 222 staff

• Message in a bubble

P
age 102



Assessing and measuring impact

• measurements in quantities of waste

• waste arisings per household

• waste arisings in north London overall

• potential for diversion

Quantitatively

• attitudinal change

• measurement of awareness

• measurement of declared behaviour
Qualitatively

• comparisons with work that has been delivered 
elsewhereUse of Metrics

Translated to tonnes of waste diverted from disposal

P
age 103



Thank you

Barbara Herridge, External Relations Manager

and 

Dimitra Rappou, Waste Prevention Manager

dimitra.rappou@nlwa.gov.uk and barbara.herridge@nlwa.gov.uk

P
age 104



DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 2017/18 
 

 
 
 
17 October 2017 

1) Quarter 1 Performance Indicator Report (Employment) 
2) Annual Report 2016/2017 on Economic Development   
3) Presentation – Recycling in Hackney 
4) NLWA presentation  
5) Work Programme 2017/18 

 
14 November 2017 

1) Quarter 2 Performance Indicator Report (Environment) 
2) Quarter 2 Performance Indicator Report (Employment) 
3) Smart Cities Scrutiny Review -12 month report back 

4) Witness/Evidence gathering from Housing Officers 

5) Witness from Operational Services Manager 

6) Witness/Evidence gathering from Caretakers/Concierge Services  

7) Work Programme 

25 January 2018 
1) Witness/Evidence gathering 
2) Work Programme 

26 February 2018 
 

1) Quarter 3 Performance Indicator Report – Q3 ( Environment) 
2) Quarter 1 Performance Indicator Report (Employment) 
3) Work Programme 

 
17 April 2018 
 

1) Performance Indicator Report – Q4 ( Employment) 

2) Executive Member Annual Report (Economic Development) 

3) Performance Indicator Report – Q4 ( Environment ) 

4) Executive Member Annual Report (Environment) 

 

26 June 2018 
 

1) Performance Indicator Report – Q4 (Employment)  
2) Work Programme 

3) Scrutiny Topics (2018/19) 

 

Topics To Be Considered  
1) The Mayor of London’s ‘Energy for Londoner’ proposals 
2) The Ultra-Low Emission Zone consultation 
3) Funding that the Mayor of London had made available for Local Implementation 

Plans and the projects the council could bid for money for 

Page 105

Agenda Item B5



4) Site visit to Recycling Depot and Waste Depot 

Page 106


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
	B2 Q1 PERFORMANCE REPORT - EMPLOYMENT & SKILLS
	B3 RECYCLING IN HACKNEY - PRESENTATION
	B4 NWLA/ISLINGTON RECYCLING - A PRESENTATION
	B5 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018

